
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

FINCHLEY & GOLDERS GREEN AREA COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

WEDNESDAY 25TH MARCH, 2015 
 

AT 7.00 PM  
 

(OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE FINCHLEY AND GOLDERS GREEN RESIDENTS’ 
FORUM BY 8.30PM , WHICHEVER IS EARLIER) 

VENUE 
 

AVENUE HOUSE, EAST END ROAD, FINCHLEY, LONDON N3 3QE 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF FINCHLEY & GOLDERS GREEN AREA COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Graham Old 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Peter Zinkin 
 

Councillors 
 

Peter Zinkin 
Geof Cooke 
 

Kath McGuirk 
Alon Or-Bach 
 

Daniel Seal 
Reuben Thompstone 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Dean Cohen 
Anne Hutton 

John Marshall 
Arjun Mittra 

Daniel Thomas  
Jim Tierney 

 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – (Acting) Head of Governance 

 
Governance Service contact: Edward Gilbert 020 8359 3469 Email: 

edward.gilbert@barnet.gov.uk 
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of last meeting  
 

1 - 8 

2.   Absence of Members (If any)  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Disclosable Pecuniary interests and Non 
Pecuniary interests (If any)  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer (If any)  
 

 

5.   Public Comments and Questions (If any)  
 

 

6.   Members' Items (If any)  
 

 

7.   LCC Proposals for Finchley and Golders Green  
 

9 - 26 

8.   Matters referred from the Finchley and Golders Green Area 
Residents Forum (If any)  
 

 

9.   Any item(s) the Chairman decides are urgent  
 

 

 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Edward Gilbert 
020 8359 3469 Email: edward.gilbert@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who 
have a text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our 
Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 

 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 

You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 

Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 

Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 

Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



 
 
 

 

    

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Decisions of the Finchley & Golders Green Area Committee 

 
15 January 2015 

 
Members Present:- 

 
Councillor Graham Old (Chairman) 

Councillor Peter Zinkin (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor Geof Cooke 
Councillor Kath McGuirk 
Councillor Alon Or-Bach 
 

Councillor Daniel Seal 
Councillor Reuben Thompstone 
 

 
Also in attendance 

  
 

 
Apologies for Absence 

 
  
 

  
 

 
 

1. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING  
 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Area Committee held on 22 
October 2014 be agreed as a correct record. 
 

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

3. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS (IF ANY)  
 
Councillor Alon Or-Bach declared a non-pecuniary interest as he sits on the East 
Finchley Festival Committee which was a subject of one of the applications submitted by 
the East Finchley Community Trust. 
 

4. REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 

2 

6. MEMBERS' ITEM - COUNCILLOR GRAHAM OLD - ISSUES REGARDING 20MPH 
ZONE POLICY  
 
The Committee heard Councillor Old’s representation on issues regarding 20mph zones. 
It was noted that a borough-wide review of the policy has taken place and will be 
considered by the Environment Committee. 
 

7. MATTERS REFERRED FROM THE FINCHLEY AND GOLDERS GREEN AREA 
RESIDENTS FORUM (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

8. THE VALE WIDTH RESTRICTION EXTENSION - UPDATE REPORT  
 
The Committee considered the report. 
 
It was noted that while members were broadly in favour of the proposed approach 
outlined in the recommendations, ward councillors had not been consulted. It was noted 
that ward councillors required opportunity to discuss the issues and consequences of the 
measures on surrounding residents. Following discussion, the Committee agreed to 
support the recommendations, subject to officers meeting with ward Councillors, ahead 
of Environment Committee meeting on 27 January 2015, to discuss the issues. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the committee notes the recommendations for additional width restriction 
measures at eight assessed locations as is shown on drawing GC/2095/101 in 
Appendix A, and also as described in appendix B. 
 

2. That officers meet with ward Councillors, prior to the Environment Committee 
meeting on 27 January 2015, to discuss the issues. 
 

3. That subject to the agreement of ward councillors, the Committee instructs the 
Chief Executive, or any other officer that he so delegates, to progress the 
measures to detailed design and implementation stages subject to agreement by 
the Environment Committee for inclusion in the 2015/16 programme and subject 
to availability of resources, ensuring consultation and negotiation with 
stakeholders includes, but not limited to, Emergency Services, Metropolitan 
Police, Transport for London (LondonBuses) and all affected stakeholders 
including utility companies and statutory bodies. 
 

4. That subject to (3) above, all material objections are dealt with by the Chief 
Executive or any other officer that he so delegates in joint liaison with the Chair of 
the Area Committee and the ward members. 

 
9. AREA COMMITTEE BUDGET ALLOCATIONS  

 
The Committee considered the recommendations in the report. Officers introduced the 
report and provided an overview of the applications and assessments process.   
 
The Chairman clarified that the report contained some misleading text in that not all 
Councillors listed as ‘sponsors’ of applications were formal sponsors. It was noted that 

2



 

3 

legal advice had been received to confirm that all members have the right to vote on all 
of the applications, regardless of their status as a sponsor.  
 
The Committee considered each application in turn. The Chairman introduced each 
application and invited discussion by the Committee. Where there were outstanding 
matters which required clarification, committee members asked questions of applicants 
present in the meeting, and responses were provided. 
 
Following consideration of each of the applications the Committee  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the following approve/ refuse the applications for funding as follows: 
 
 

Applicant/ 
organisation 

Description Amount 
applied for 

Approved/Rejected, and any 
conditions 

Cricklewood 
Town Team 

Animate to 
Activate events 
at street market 

£10,000 Approved, subject to  
 

1. the Conditions of Grant as 
set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 
 

2. A reduction in the budget 
applied for to £9,999 
 

3. Review, by the council’s 
safeguarding officers,  of 
safeguarding information 
provided by the applicant 

 
Final approval is delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer (or other 
officer as nominated by the Chief 
Executive) subject to the receipt of 
any supplementary information 
which has been requested in relation 
to 3 above. 
 

Ezra Youth 
Movement  

Support for a 
youth club in 
Golders Green 

£4,500 Approved, subject to  
 

1. The Conditions of Grant as 
set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 
 

2. Review, by the council’s 
safeguarding officers,  of 
safeguarding information 
provided by the applicant 

 
Final approval is delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer (or other 
officer as nominated by the Chief 
Executive) subject to the receipt of 
any supplementary information 
which has been requested in relation 

3



 

4 

to 2 above. 
 

Friends of 
Windsor Open 
Space 

A project to 
enhance 
Windsor Open 
space 

£4,500 Approved , subject to  
 

1. The Conditions of Grant as 
set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 
 

2. Approval of Greenspaces 
Team on the approach to be 
taken with respect to the 
removal of dead trees 

 
3. Review, by the council’s 

safeguarding officers,  of 
safeguarding information 
provided by the applicant 
 

Final approval is delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer (or other 
officer as nominated by the Chief 
Executive) subject to the receipt of 
any supplementary information 
which has been requested in relation 
to 2 and 3 above. 
 

Legadel Educational and 
developmental 
needs support 
for 
disadvantaged 
children 

£9,950 Approved, subject to  
 

1. The Conditions of Grant as 
set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 
 

2. Review, by the council’s 
safeguarding officers,  of 
safeguarding information 
provided by the applicant 

 
Final approval is delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer (or other 
officer as nominated by the Chief 
Executive) subject to the receipt of 
any supplementary information 
which has been requested in relation 
to 2 above. 

 

East Finchley 
Community 
Trust 

Support for 
festivals in June 
and December 

£2,250 Approved , subject to the Conditions 
of Grant as set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 
 

North Finchley 
Town Team 

Percy Road 
Playground 
renovation  

£9,999 Approved, subject to the Conditions 
of Grant as set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 
 

Somali 
Bravanese 
Welfare 
Association in 

Youth media 
courses for 
disadvantaged 
young people 

£9,695 Approved, subject to  
 

1. The Conditions of Grant as 
set out in Annex 3 of the 

4



 

5 

Barnet report of officers 
 

2. Review, by the council’s 
safeguarding officers,  of 
safeguarding information 
provided by the applicant 
 

3. The receipt of assurances 
from the applicant about the 
future sustainability of the 
project 

 
Final approval is delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer (or other 
officer as nominated by the Chief 
Executive) subject to the receipt of 
any supplementary information 
which has been requested in relation 
to 2 and 3 above. 
 

Long Lane 
Pasture Trust 

Build Gazebo on 
open site 

£5,000 Approved subject to  
 

1. The Conditions of Grant as 
set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 
 

2. Planning permission being 
granted 
 

Migdal Emunah Safeguarding/ab
use awareness 
project for 
Jewish 
schoolchildren 

£4,340 
 
(50% match 
funded with 
the Hendon 
Area 
Committee) 

Approved, subject to  
 

1. The Conditions of Grant as 

set out in Annex 3 of the 

report of officers 

2. Review, by the council’s 

safeguarding officers,  of 

safeguarding information 

provided by the applicant 

3. Approval by Hendon Area 

Committee of match funding  

Final approval is delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer (or other 
officer as nominated by the Chief 
Executive) subject to the receipt of 
any supplementary information 
which has been requested in relation 
to 2 above. 
 

45 Clitterhouse 
Farm, Alistair 
Lambert 

Support for local 
engagement 
activities, shed 
for children's 
projects and 
architect 

£9,999 Approved, subject to  
 

1. The Conditions of Grant as 
set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 

 

5



 

6 

2. The receipt of assurances 
from the applicant that it will 
work closely with 
Greenspaces Team to 
ensure a safe and improved 
access 
 

3. Review, by the council’s 
safeguarding officers,  of 
safeguarding information 
provided by the applicant 

 
Final approval is delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer (or other 
officer as nominated by the Chief 
Executive) subject to the receipt of 
any supplementary information 
which has been requested in relation 
to 2 and 3 above. 
 

Friends of 
Tiferes 

A project 
supporting the 
health and 
welfare of young 
people, IT and 
life skills 

£5,000 Approved, subject to  
 

1. The Conditions of Grant as 
set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 
 

2. Review, by the council’s 
safeguarding officers,  of 
safeguarding information 
provided by the applicant 

 
Final approval is delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer (or other 
officer as nominated by the Chief 
Executive) subject to the receipt of 
any supplementary information 
which has been requested in relation 
to 2 above. 
 

Friends of 
Childs Hill Park 

Childs Hill Park 
play equipment 

£9,950 Approved, subject to the Conditions 
of Grant as set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 

 

Cricklewood 
Millennium 
Green Trust 

Community 
Garden on the 
Green Golders 
Green 

£180 Approved, subject to  
 

1. The Conditions of Grant as 
set out in Annex 3 of the 
report of officers 
 

2. Review, by the council’s 
safeguarding officers,  of 
safeguarding information 
provided by the applicant 

 
Final approval is delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer (or other 
officer as nominated by the Chief 

6



 

7 

Executive) subject to the receipt of 
any supplementary information 
which has been requested in relation 
to 2 above. 
 

Temple Fortune 
Club 

Relay car park 
outside club 

£30,000 Refused as the project failed to 
demonstrate a benefit to the wider 
community. 
  

AOPM – 
Communities 
for Youth 
Justice 

Family support 
for a child in 
contact with the 
Youth Offending 
Service 

£9,999 Refused due to the application failing 
the council’s due diligence tests or 
contravening the conditions for 
funding. 

London Fire 
Brigade 

Fire Brigade 
diversionary 
activities for 
young people 

£5,000 Refused due to the application failing 
the council’s due diligence tests or 
contravening the conditions for 
funding. 
 

 

 
 

10. ANY ITEM(S) THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
There were none. 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 10.00 pm 
 
 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 
This report presents a review of a series of proposals made by the London Cycle 
Campaign to provide ‘Space for Cycling’ in wards in the Finchley & Golders Green area. 
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the committee note the contents of the report 

 

2. That members of the committee provide officers with their views and 
comments in relation to further development of the proposals in the Finchley 
& Golders Green Area. 
 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

 

Finchley & Golders Green Area 
Committee 

 

25 March2015 
  

Title  

Review of London Cycle Campaign 
proposed schemes for Finchley & 
Golders Green 

Report of Interim Commissioning Director - Environment 

Wards 
Childs Hill, East Finchley, Finchley Church End, Garden 
Suburb, Golders Green, West Finchley, Woodhouse 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Appendix A –  Finchley & Golders Green Area LCC proposals 
Review 

Officer Contact Details  Jane Shipman, jane.shipman@barnet.gov.uk, 020 8359 3555 

AGENDA ITEM 7

9



1.1 During the 2014 Local election campaign the London Cycle Campaign (LCC) 
identified a local cycling improvement aimed at creating ‘Space for Cycling’ in 
every electoral ward in London, and invited candidates to support these. 

 
1.2 At the Finchley and Golders Green Area Committee meeting of the 18 June 

2014, in response to a member’s item, the Committee resolved that “the 
Strategic Director for Growth and Environment instruct officers to undertake 
an initial feasibility study to include engaging with the LCC, including cost, 
looking at their proposals in Finchley and Golders Green.” 

 
1.3 It was noted that a report will be brought back to the Committee to determine 

which schemes should be progressed to public consultation. 
 
1.4 Similar resolutions were made by the other area committees in relation to 

LCC proposals in their areas. 
 
1.5 The review of London Cycle Campaign proposed schemes for Finchley & 

Golders Green Area is set out in appendix A but is summarised below. 

Ward and LCC 
proposal 

Officer Comments on LCC proposals and 
associated costs 

Childs Hill Ward 
Protected lanes on 
Hendon Way, Finchley 
Road and Cricklewood 
Lane 

TfL are considering a route along A41 Hendon 
Way as part of cycle superhighway 11 and the 
section of Cricklewood Lane from the junction with 
the A5 Cricklewood Broadway up to and including 
the junction with Claremont Road is included within 
the boundary of the Brent Cross Cricklewood 
planning application boundary and major changes 
are expected to the road environment in this area 
as a result. Consideration of proposals therefore 
focuses on the part of Cricklewood Lane between 
Claremont Road and Hendon Waya and on the 
A598 Finchley Road. 
 
Cricklewood Lane (Claremont Road to Hendon 
Way) 
A cycle lane and a general traffic lane in each 
direction could be provided on Cricklewood Lane 
but this would not leave space for on-street 
parking. Currently parking is restricted in much of 
the road only between 10 and 11am and provision 
is made for residents during these hours too. Cycle 
lanes operational only at peak hours might be an 
alternative, but the impact on resident parking 
would still be significant. Provision of cycle lanes 
and associated adjustments through this length 
could be expected to cost in the region of 
£100,000. 
 
Finchley Road (Hendon Way to Golders Green 
Road) 
A cycle lane and a general traffic lane in each 

10



direction could be provided on this stretch of 
Finchley Road if on street parking were prevented. 
Much of the parking provision on this road is tidal – 
that is parking is restricted on the southbound side 
of the road in the mornings and on the northbound 
side of the road in the evenings. Cycle lanes also 
operating tidally could be a compromise solution 
that could retain much of the existing parking 
provision. Adjustments to kerblines at the 
Cricklewood Lane junction would be needed to 
accommodate cycle lanes and advance stop lines. 
At Dunstan Road the retention of two general 
traffic lanes at the signals will probably not be 
possible and the impact on the junction operation 
would need to be assessed and mitigated if 
possible. 
Provision of cycle lanes and associated 
adjustments through this length could be expected 
to cost in the region of £150,000. 
 
Finchley Road junction with Golders Green 
Road. The gyratory road layout is not a good 
arrangement for cyclists. Previous studies to 
consider a plain cross-road arrangement (that 
would be better for cyclists) were not able to 
overcome issues of impact on traffic movement. A 
study to establish the best achievable layout and 
provision of a major junction scheme at this 
location could cost in excess of £250,000. 
 
Finchley Road north of Golders Green Road (to 
Ravenscroft Avenue) As further south on the 
Finchley Road, tidal cycle lanes in conjunction with 
retained tidal parking may be appropriate. The 
signalised junction at Hoop Lane provides little 
scope to introduce cycle lanes without impacting 
on junction operation. Alternatives such as making 
cycle use at this location prominent by the use of 
cycle carriageway signing in the centre of each 
lane and possible coloured surfacing might be 
considered together as part of a junction redesign 
and adjustments to the pedestrian refuge and 
protected turning areas just south of the junction. 
Addressing this section could be expected to cost 
around £100,000 
 

East Finchley Ward 
Protected cycle lanes on 
the A1000 High Road 

A1000- borough boundary to Fortis Green 
signals 
The A1000 south of Fortis Green is generally wide, 
and provision of cycle lane in both directions would 
be feasible while retaining parking on one side of 

11



the road where needed.  From the Bishops Avenue 
northwards to Fortis Green past the station the 
current to lane road layout would need to be 
adapted to provide a single general traffic lane and 
a separate cycle lane. The implications of this on 
traffic movement would need to be assessed. 
Making ideal provision for cyclists may not be 
feasible, but redesign of the traffic signalled 
junction to enhance provision should be possible. 
Provision of cycle lanes and associated 
adjustments through this length could be expected 
to cost in the region of £100,000-£150,000, 
depending on the scale of changes at the signals. 
 
A1000 – Fortis Green to Creighton Avenue 
Provision of high quality cycle facilities in this area 
would be a challenge.  Available space is 
insufficient to provide cycle lanes in both directions 
while retaining the current kerblines and parking 
arrangements, and even with significant 
modification could only be accommodated if 
parking were retained on one side of the road only. 
 
A more limited solution providing route continuity 
for more confident cyclists could be to provide 
cycle carriageway markings centrally within the 
general traffic lane. 
 
An alternative approach would be to consider a 
significant remodelling of the street through East 
Finchley to provide a lower speed environment still 
providing for through traffic but in which it is less 
dominant.  The cost of developing and 
implementing such a proposal would clearly be 
high (in excess of £1M). 
 
A1000 – Creighton Avenue to North Circular 
Road 
The wide carriageway and more limited parking 
pressures through most of this length mean that 
cycle lanes might be provided alongside general 
traffic lanes in both directions while retaining 
parking on one side of the road where needed. 
Provision of cycle lanes and associated 
adjustments through this length could be expected 
to cost about £50,000. 
 
A1000 junction with North Circular Road 
An outline proposal for crossing the North Circular 
Road was developed as part of the borough’s 
application for the London Mayor’s Cycling mini-

12



Holland scheme. Although this did not proceed, the 
outline design provides for a semi-segregated 
route on the bridge over the North Circular Road 
and improved facilities for cyclists at the signalised 
junctions each end. Further development of the 
proposal including detailed consideration of traffic 
impacts would need to be take place before the 
proposal could be considered for implementation 
but as a guide the proposal could be expected to 
cost in the region of £500,000 including 
development costs 
 

Finchley Church End 
Ward 
Protected cycle lanes on 
the A598 Regent's Park 
Road / Ballards Lane 

Regents Park Road (North Circular Road to 
Gravel Hill) 
The wide carriageway 11 to 16m provides scope to 
provide a cycle lane and general traffic lane in both 
directions with car parking provided on one or both 
sides of the road. Space on the northbound 
approach to the Gravel Hill signals is too limited to 
provide a lead in lane to an advance stop line for 
cyclists and alternative measures to highlight the 
presence of cyclists in the inside lane through 
cycle symbols and possibly coloured surfacing 
could be a compromise solution.  Development 
and implementation of proposals for this length 
might cost in the region of £50,000 and possibly up 
to £100,000 if more major work were undertaken at 
the traffic signals. 
 
Gravel Hill to Hendon Lane 
At around 12m -13m wide the road could 
accommodate general traffic lanes and cycle lanes 
in both directions but with parking restricted to one 
side of the road only. Changes might cost in the 
region of £20,000. 
 
Hendon Lane to Nether Street 
Maintaining provision for cyclists alongside general 
traffic through this length would be likely to impact 
on the operation of the signals at Nether Street 
and on provision made for traffic turning into side 
roads, increasing congestion.  Provision of route 
continuity markings within shared traffic lanes 
might provide adequately for more confident 
cyclists. Alternatives that change the street 
environment to might be an alternative higher cost 
option. 
 
Changes through much of Ballards Lane (in West 
Finchley Ward) could be made to accommodate 
cycle lanes but retaining parking on one side of the 

13



road. Lanes and associated adjustments might be 
expected to cost in the region of £100,000.  
Alternatively high cost (over £1M) public realm 
changes to provide a lower speed environment in 
which traffic is less dominant while still providing 
for through traffic might be considered. 
 

Garden Suburb Ward 
Protected cycle lanes on 
the Bishops Avenue and 
along the Heath. 

The Bishops Avenue 
Cycle lanes in both directions on The Bishops 
Avenue could be provided alongside general traffic 
lanes if parking were restricted. This might 
inconvenience residents close to the High Road 
(A1000).  Reducing the speed limit from the 
current 40mph south of Falloden Way to 30mph 
would also be desirable. 
 
Provision of cycle lanes, conversion of pedestrian 
refuges to zebra crossings and parking and speed 
limit changes could be expected to cost around 
£100,000 - £150,000. 
 
Provision of advance stop lines at the junction with 
the A1 Falloden Way could affect the capacity of 
the junction to some extent and detailed 
consideration of the impact of this would be 
needed.  Assessment of the impacts and 
adjustments required could cost from around 
£20,000 and potentially significantly more if major 
changes are required to mitigate impacts. 
 
Hampstead Lane 
Hampstead Heath itself is outside the borough of 
Barnet. A short stretch of Hampstead Lane from 
The Bishops Avenue to The Spaniards is within the 
borough, alongside Kenwood House grounds.  
Enhanced cycle facilities in this stretch could be 
achieved through provision of dedicated lanes in 
both directions through most of the length. 
Provision / re-provision of cycle lanes on 
Hampstead Lane, including adjustments to 
pedestrian islands and to the traffic signalled 
junction at The Bishops Avenue could be expected 
to coast in the region of £50,000. 
 
 

Golders Green Ward 
Protected space for 
cycling on Brent Cross 
Flyover and access to 
Brent Cross, 
regeneration areas and 

Improvements in the Brent Cross Area at the Brent 
Cross Interchange and at Staples Corner flyover 
are being considered as part of the major 
development scheme in the area so proposals for 
this area are not considered separately in this 
review 

14



local quiet ways 

West Finchley Ward 
Safe cycle routes to the 
Ballards Lane & Tally Ho 
town centre (Close West 
side of Tally Ho) 

Conceptual work has been carried out previously 
in conjunction with the Outer London Fund work in 
North Finchley looking at major changes to the 
Tally Ho intersection. This considered changes 
that would restrict (but not eliminate) traffic on the 
Western side of Tally Ho and make the junction of 
the High Road and Woodhouse Road and 
Kingsway a more conventional signalised 
crossroad junction. Traffic modelling work has 
been undertaken that suggests that such an 
arrangement could operate successfully. 
 
Introducing the changes would involve significant 
traffic management changes and would probably 
be undertaken in conjunction with other public 
realm improvements. The cost would be highly 
dependent on the scope of associated public realm 
work, but in any event would be expected to 
exceed £500,000 and would probably significantly 
higher (£1M+). 

Woodhouse Ward 
Protected cycle lanes 
along A1000 High Road 

The information above related to West Finchley 
discusses the treatment of the Tally Ho area. 
Provision of cycle lanes south and north of the 
Tally Ho area is considered further below. 
 
The wide (over 12m) carriageway of the A1000 
between the North Circular Road and Woodhouse 
Road provide space for provision of cycle lanes 
with the flexibility to permit parking on one side of 
the road where needed.  Adjustments at the 
Granville Road/Summers Lane junction would also 
be needed. Provision of lanes and associated 
adjustments to parking, refuges and the Granville 
Road / Summers Lane junction might be provided 
for £50,000 to £100,000. 
 
The provision of improvements at the junction with 
the North Circular Road is referred to above (see 
East Finchley). 
 
The carriageway between Tally Ho and Woodside 
Lane is mainly about 12-13m wide with a very wide 
(over 20m section) section between Mayfield 
Avenue and Finchley Park. Through most of the 
length a general traffic lane and cycle lane could 
be provided with parking permitted on one side of 
the road only. In the wide centre section parking 
both sides of the road might be retained. 
 

 

15



2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 The recommendations provide feedback in response to the Committee’s 
earlier decision. The review has attempted to provide information on the 
feasibility of making the suggested provision noting constraints and potential 
issues and locations where more detailed investigations would be needed to 
fully consider the feasibility of the proposals. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 An initial brief was developed to undertake a fuller study across all the 
proposals but this was found to be unaffordable. 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Proposals for cycle improvements in the borough will inform the developing 
Cycle Strategy. This is expected to inform development and priority of future 
cycling schemes. In the meantime proposals that the area committee would 
like to see taken further, in terms of implementation, further studies or 
consultation will be included in reports to be prepared for consideration by the 
Environment Committee to agree future years work programmes. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
5.1.1 Provision of cycle facilities would particularly help delivery the Corporate Plan 

strategic objective of promoting responsible growth, development and success 
across the borough, and the priority outcome of maintaining a well designed, 
attractive and accessible place, with sustainable infrastructure across the 
borough. 
 

5.1.2 Making it easier for more people to cycle also helps address health objectives 
by providing more opportunities for physical activity. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 

5.2.1 There are no direct resources implications from this report. Local 
Implementation Plan funding provided by Transport for London provides for 
work to develop and implement cycle routes and facilities. Proposals to be 
delivered with this funding will be agreed by the Environment Committee as 
part of the 2015/16 (or future years’) programmes of work in due course. 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
5.3.1 There are no specific legal implications in relation to this report. 
 
5.3.2 The Constitution section 15 Responsibility for Functions, Annex A, delegates 

area committees the power to: 
 

“Discharge any functions, within the budget and policy framework 
agreed by Policy and Resources, of the theme  committees that they 
agree are more properly delegated to a more local level.  These 

16



include but are not limited to: 5 Local highways and safety schemes”. 
 

5.3.3 The same annex provides that the Environment Committee has specific 
responsibilities for commissioning Transport and traffic management including 
agreement of London Transport Strategy-Local Implementation Plan.  
 

5.4 Risk Management 
5.4.1 There are no particular risks associated with this decision. However there are 

potential risks associated with introducing some of the measures that any 
future decision to do so would need to consider. 

• Some proposals would impact on parking which may result in negative 
customer perceptions and publicity. However failure to make provision for 
cyclists may also affect perceptions. 

• Some proposals could have an impact on road network performance that 
would need to be mitigated and balanced against the benefits of making 
the provision. 

• Poorly designed cycle facilities may increase the risks of injury to cyclists, 
however well designed facilities may reduce risks. Increasing cycling levels 
overall helps to reduce the level of injury risk to individual cyclists.  

 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
5.5.1 The decision is not considered to compromise the authority in fulfilment of its 

Equality Duty to have due regard to the need to:  

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other  conduct  prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

• advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups  

• foster good relations between people from different groups  
 

Provision of cycling facilities may provide differential benefits to groups more 
likely to cycle. This includes children and young adults and men and ‘White 
British’ ethnic group. However provision may also remove some of the barriers 
to cycling for other groups.  An impact assessment of the borough’s Local 
Implementation Plan identified, based on satisfaction survey responses, that 
provision of cycle facilities may be a higher priority for minority ethnic groups 
in the borough than for the population as a whole.  Cyclists sharing pedestrian 
facilities can be a concern and some older and disabled people can be at 
greater risk if this occurs. Providing facilities for cyclists may introduce shared 
facilities in controlled situations or reduce uncontrolled use of pavements by 
cyclists concerned about cycling on a carriageway without facilities. 
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
5.6.1 Informal engagement regarding some of the ideas identified by London Cycle 

Campaign has taken place in conjunction with discussions around 
development of a borough Cycling Strategy and in relation to proposals for 
Brent Cross Cricklewood. Consultation requirements for any proposals that 
are developed further would vary depending on the scale and impact of these.  
 

17



6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 The meeting of the Finchley and Golders Green Area Committee of 18 June 
2014: 

RESOLVED: - That the Strategic Director for Growth and Environment 
instruct officers to undertake an initial feasibility study to include 
engaging with the LCC, including cost, looking at their proposals in 
Finchley and Golders Green. It was noted that a report would be 
brought back to the Area Sub-Committee for the Committee to 
determine which schemes should be progressed to public consultation. 
Minutes of the Area Committee meeting can be found via this link: 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=712&MId=7
983&Ver=4  

 
 

18



Appendix A 
Finchley and Golders Green Area LCC proposals Review 
 
Childs Hill Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected lanes on Hendon Way, Finchley Road and Cricklewood Lane 
 
Heavy traffic on the major routes through Childs Hill Ward is intimidating for cyclists. 
Protected Space for Cycling in this area will greatly improve the amenity for all road 
users, it will enliven the shopping areas and the local community. Safe routes will 
encourage many more children to cycle to school. The A41 Hendon Way is already 
designated by Transport for London as part of the Mayor of London's Cycle 
Superhighway CS11 and we want to see a spur of that Superhighway to Golders 
Green via the A598 Finchley Road and to Cricklewood via Cricklewood Lane 
 
Review 
 
As noted above TfL are considering a route along A41 Hendon Way as part of cycle 
superhighway 11 so this is not considered further here. This review therefore 
considers how provision might be made on A598 Finchley Road and A407 
Cricklewood Lane only. 
 
The section of Cricklewood Lane from the junction with the A5 Cricklewood 
Broadway up to and including the junction with Claremont Road is included within 
the boundary of the Brent Cross Cricklewood planning application boundary and 
major changes are expected to the road environment in this area as a result. 
Consideration of proposals for Cricklewood Lane below therefore focuses on the 
stretch between Claremont Road and Hendon Way. 
 
Cricklewood Lane (Claremont Road to Hendon Way) 
The carriageway on Cricklewood Lane is mainly around 10m wide. A cycle lane and 
a general traffic lane in each direction could be provided but this would not leave 
space for on-street parking. Currently parking is only restricted in much of the road 
between the hours of 10 and 11am and provision is made for resident parking during 
these hours too. Cycle lanes operational only at peak hours might be an alternative 
to restricting parking entirely, but the impact on resident parking would still be 
significant. 
 
Alternative provision for pedestrians would need to be considered in place of the 
pedestrian refuge near Gillingham Road as the space past the island is in the range 
that could encourage other vehicles to pass too close to cyclists. Kerb adjustments 
at the pelican crossing near Dersingham Road could address the same issue at this 
location. Provision of cycle lanes and associated adjustments through this length 
could be expected to cost in the region of £100,000. 
 
Finchley Road (Hendon Way to Golders Green Road) 
A cycle lane and a general traffic lane in each direction could be provided on this 
stretch of Finchley Road if on street parking were prevented. Much of the parking 
provision on this road is tidal – that is parking is restricted on the southbound side of 

19



the road in the mornings and on the northbound side of the road in the evenings. 
Cycle lanes also operating tidally could be a compromise solution to retain much of 
the existing parking provision, but clearly this would be less helpful for cyclists. 
Provision for cyclists at traffic signals in the form of Advanced Stop Lines with a lead 
in cycle lane appears feasible at the junctions with Cricklewood Lane with some 
adjustments to kerblines. However at Dunstan Road the retention of two general 
traffic lanes at the signals would probably not be possible and the impact on the 
junction operation would need to be assessed and mitigated if possible. 
 
Alternative provision for pedestrians would need to be considered in place of the 
pedestrian refuge between Hodford Road and Wycombe Gardens. The space past 
the refuge is in the range that may encourage vehicles to pass too close to cyclists 
and is inadequate to provide cycle lanes. A zebra crossing might be a suitable 
alternative. Provision of cycle lanes and associated adjustments through this length 
could be expected to cost in the region of £150,000. 
 
Finchley Road junction with Golders Green Road. The gyratory road layout is not 
a good arrangement for cyclists. Previous studies to consider a signalised plain 
cross-road arrangement (that would be a better option for cyclists) were not able to 
overcome issues related to junction capacity and the impact on traffic movement. A 
further study to establish the best achievable layout and provision of a major junction 
scheme at this location could cost in excess of £250,000. 
 
Finchley Road north of Golders Green Road (to Ravenscroft Avenue) As 
described above for the section of Finchley Road south of Golders Green Road, tidal 
cycle lanes in conjunction with retained tidal parking may be appropriate. The 
signalised junction at Hoop Lane provides little scope to introduce cycle lanes 
without impacting on junction operation. Alternatives such as making cycle use at 
this location prominent by the use of cycle carriageway signing in the centre of the 
approach lane and possibly coloured surfacing as part of a junction redesign and 
adjustments to the pedestrian refuge and protected turning areas just south of the 
junction. Addressing this section could be expected to cost around £100,000 
 
 
East Finchley Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected cycle lanes on the A1000 High Road 
 
A1000 High Road through East Finchley provides one of the few links across the 
North Circular Road. Protected Space for Cycling will connect with neighbouring 
wards and allow many more people to cycle to work and cycle to the shopping areas 
on the High Road. This ask is part of a concerted vision for a Cycle Superhighway 
route along the entire A1000 (the historic A1 / Great North Road) from High Barnet to 
East Finchley, connecting with TfL's Cycle Superhighway 12 (along the A1) into the 
City of London 
 
Review 
We understand that TfL’s proposals for Cycle Superhighway 12 from Central London 
to East Finchley or Muswell Hill are not now expected to proceed in the form 

20



originally envisaged, however a Quietway Route (intended to be a cross-London 
network of high-quality, low-traffic cycle routes suitable for use by novice as well as 
more experienced cyclists) is being considered following a similar alignment. Such a 
route would probably need to make use of the A1000 through the section through the 
section from a little south of Fortis Green to Leslie Road. 
 
A1000- borough boundary to Fortis Green signals 
The A1000 south of Fortis Green is generally wide, and provision of cycle lane in 
both directions would be feasible while retaining parking on one side of the road 
where needed.  From the Bishops Avenue northwards to Fortis Green past the 
station the current to lane road layout would need to be adapted to provide a single 
general traffic lane and a separate cycle lane. The implications of this on traffic 
movement would need to be assessed. Two general traffic lanes on the approach to 
the junction would need to be retained to maintain the capacity of the junction.  
Modifications to the road layout to accommodate this and a cycle lane leading to 
(and from) the signals may be possible. Alternatively use of prominent cycle 
carriageway signing in the centre of the nearside lane with possible use of coloured 
surfacing in the lane could help highlight use by cyclists.  This junction suffers 
competing demands and assessment of the impacts on traffic movement would be 
needed. Making ideal provision for cyclists may not be feasible, but redesign of the 
traffic signalled junction to enhance provision should be possible. Provision of cycle 
lanes and associated adjustments through this length could be expected to cost in 
the region of £100,000-£150,000, depending on the scale of changes at the signals. 
More major changes might be an option in conjunction with significant changes to 
the public realm through the shopping area further north to provide a route more 
suitable for novice cyclists. 
 
A1000 – Fortis Green to Creighton Avenue 
Provision of either a Superhighway or a Quietway style route through the shopping 
area north of Fortis Green would be a challenge.  Available space is insufficient to 
provide cycle lanes in both directions while retaining the current kerblines and 
parking arrangements, and even with significant modification could only be 
accommodated if parking were retained on one side of the road only. A more limited 
solution providing route continuity for more confident cyclists could be to provide 
cycle carriageway markings centrally within the general traffic lane.   
 
Either arrangement would be unlikely to provide the level of protection that a 
Quietway route useable by less experienced cyclists would expect. An alternative 
approach that might serve either style of cycle route and that might also retain 
parking provision would be to consider a significant remodelling of the street through 
East Finchley to provide a lower speed environment still providing for through traffic 
but in which it is less dominant.  The cost of developing and implementing such a 
proposal would clearly be high (in excess of £1M). 
 
A1000 – Creighton Avenue to North Circular Road 
The wide carriageway and more limited parking pressures through most of this 
length mean that cycle lanes might be provided alongside general traffic lanes in 
both directions while retaining parking on one side of the road where needed. 
Adjustments in the vicinity of the traffic islands near Willow Walk would be needed to 

21



make provision past these. Provision of cycle lanes and associated adjustments 
through this length could be expected to cost about £50,000. 
 
A1000 junction with North Circular Road 
An outline proposal for crossing the North Circular Road was developed as part of 
the borough’s application for the London Mayor’s Cycling mini-Holland scheme. 
Although this did not proceed, the outline design provides for a semi-segregated 
route on the bridge over the North Circular Road and improved facilities for cyclists 
at the signalised junctions each end. Further development of the proposal including 
detailed consideration of traffic impacts would need to be take place before the 
proposal could be considered for implementation but as a guide the proposal could 
be expected to cost in the region of £500,000 including development costs 
 
Finchley Church End Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected cycle lanes on the A598 Regent's Park Road / Ballards Lane 
 
Protected space for cycling will attract more people to cycling and benefit all road 
users through reduced congestion, as well as increase trade to local shops and 
leisure facilities. This ask is part of a concerted vision for a Cycle Superhighway-
standard route along the A598 connecting the Mayor's CS11 at Childs Hill to another 
Cycle Superhighway along the A1000 at Tally Ho' Corner. 
 
Review 
 
Regents Park Road (North Circular Road to Gravel Hill) 
The wide carriageway 11 to 16m provides scope to provide a cycle lane and general 
traffic lane in both directions with car parking also provided in both directions in many 
places (separated from the cycle lane by a buffer zone).  Parking on one side of the 
road only could be accommodated on the northern stretch, part of which is currently 
provided with unrestricted parking bays on both sides of the road. Space on the 
northbound approach to the signals is too limited to provide a lead in lane to an 
advance stop line for cyclists and is also limited on the southbound approach, 
although there may be scope to adjust kerb-lines to overcome this.  Providing a lane 
on the northbound approach would not be possible without impacting on junction 
capacity or pedestrian provision. Alternative measures to highlight the presence of 
cyclists in the inside lane through cycle symbols and possibly coloured surfacing 
could be a compromise solution.  Development and implementation of proposals for 
this length might cost in the region of £50,000 and possibly up to £100,000 if more 
major work were undertaken at the traffic signals. 
 
Gravel Hill to Hendon Lane 
At around 12m -13m wide the road could accommodate general traffic lanes and 
cycle lanes in both directions but with parking restricted to one side of the road only. 
Changes might cost in the region of £20,000. 
 
Hendon Lane to Nether Street 
Maintaining provision for cyclists alongside general traffic through this length would 
be likely to impact on the operation of the signals at Nether Street and on provision 

22



made for traffic turning into side roads, increasing congestion.  Provision of route 
continuity markings within shared traffic lanes might provide adequately for more 
confident cyclists. Alternatives that change the street environment to might be an 
alternative higher cost option. 
 
Changes through much of Ballards Lane (in West Finchley Ward) could be made to 
accommodate cycle lanes but retaining parking on one side of the road. Lanes and 
associated adjustments might be expected to cost in the region of £100,000.  
Alternatively high cost (over £1M) public realm changes to provide a lower speed 
environment in which traffic is less dominant while still providing for through traffic 
might be considered. 
 
Garden Suburb Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected cycle lanes on the Bishops Avenue and along the Heath. 
 
The Bishops Avenue is a useful link route for cyclists avoiding the trunk roads. The 
levels of fast motor traffic create a hazard for cyclists. Providing protected space will 
make this area and the Heath accessible for family cycling. 
 
Review 
The Bishops Avenue 
At about 9m wide (or slightly wider) throughout, cycle lanes in both directions on The 
Bishops Avenue could be provided alongside general traffic lanes if parking were 
restricted.  This could probably be accommodated on the southern section (between 
Hampstead Lane and the A1), but between the A1 and the A1000 High Road permit 
holder parking is provided during the day and restriction is likely to cause difficulties, 
although residents have rear access.  Alternative provision would be need to be 
considered for pedestrians in place of existing pedestrian refuges on the southern 
section as the space past the refuges is inadequate and reducing the speed limit 
from the current 40mph on this length to 30mph would also be desirable, and may be 
necessary to achieve some design requirements. 
 
Provision of cycle lanes, conversion of pedestrian refuges to zebra crossings and 
parking and speed limit changes could be expected to cost around £100,000 - 
£150,000. 
 
Provision of advance stop lines at the junction with the A1 Falloden Way could affect 
the capacity of the junction to some extent and detailed consideration of the impact 
of this would be needed.  Assessment of the impacts and adjustments required could 
cost from around £20,000 and potentially significantly more if major changes are 
required to mitigate impacts. 
 
Hampstead Lane 
Hampstead Heath itself is outside the borough of Barnet. A short stretch of 
Hampstead Lane from The Bishops Avenue to The Spaniards is within the borough, 
alongside Kenwood House grounds.  The road is 12m wide or more through much of 
this stretch reducing to 7.5m before reaching the signalised single lane section past 
The Spaniards. An on road cycle lane in one direction only has been provided on 

23



part of this length in the past. Enhanced cycle facilities in this stretch could be 
achieved through provision of dedicated lanes in both directions through most of the 
length, with adjustments made at pedestrian refuges to accommodate the lanes and 
at the junction with The Bishops Avenue to provide advanced stop lines. A lane 
could be provided in one direction only approaching the traffic signals at The 
Spaniard, where the road narrows to 7.5m. 
 
Provision / re-provision of cycle lanes on Hampstead Lane, including adjustments to 
pedestrian islands and to the traffic signalled junction at The Bishops Avenue could 
be expected to coast in the region of £50,000. 
 
Golders Green Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected space for cycling on Brent Cross Flyover and access to Brent Cross, 
regeneration areas and local quiet ways 
 
TfL's Cycle Superhighway CS11 will follow the A41 Hendon Way and terminate at 
the Brent Cross A41/A406 interchange. It is vital that, rather than stopping at a 
barrier, there is high quality cycle route continuity in all directions (north, along the 
A41 towards Hendon, west along the A406 or a Quietway into the Brent Cross 
Cricklewood new town centre / regeneration zone and east along a Quietway on 
Highfield Avenue to Golders Green Road.  
 
Brent Cross Flyover is one of the very few crossing points of the North Circular 
Road, without safe space for cycling it is a major barrier preventing people from 
choosing to travel by bike. Safe cycle access to Brent Cross shopping centre will 
promote more cycle trips and reduce motor car congestion in the area. 
 
Review 
Improvements in the Brent Cross Area at the Brent Cross Interchange and at Staples 
Corner flyover are being considered as part of the major development scheme in the 
area so proposals for this area are not considered separately in this review. 
 
West Finchley Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Safe cycle routes to the Ballards Lane & Tally Ho town centre (Close West side of 
Tally Ho) 
 
Ballards Lane and the A1000 High Road, Finchley are major routes through here. 
This is also the local high street for Finchley. It needs to accommodate all modes of 
traffic and serve the local community. Closing the west side of Tally Ho gyratory and 
building a cycle superhighway standard routes here will reduce the dominance of 
through motor traffic. This is a joint measure with Woodhouse ward. 
 
Review 
Conceptual work has been carried out previously in conjunction with the Outer 
London Fund work in North Finchley looking at major changes to the Tally Ho 
intersection. This considered changes that would restrict (but not eliminate) traffic on 

24



the Western side of Tally Ho and make the junction of the High Road and 
Woodhouse Road and Kingsway a more conventional signalised crossroad junction. 
Traffic modelling work has been undertaken that suggests that such an arrangement 
could operate successfully. Introducing the changes would involve significant traffic 
management changes and would probably be undertaken in conjunction with other 
public realm improvements. The cost would be highly dependent on the scope of 
associated public realm work, but in any event would be expected to exceed 
£500,000 and could be significantly higher. 
 
Woodhouse Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected cycle lanes along A1000 High Road 
 
The A1000 High Road Finchley is the major route through here. It is also the local 
high street for Finchley. It needs to accommodate all modes of traffic and serve the 
local community. Closing the west side of the gyratory and building a cycle 
superhighway standard route here will reduce the dominance of through motor 
traffic. This is a joint ask with West Finchley ward 
 
Review 
The information above related to West Finchley discusses the treatment of the Tally 
Ho area. Provision of cycle lanes south and north of the Tally Ho area is considered 
further below. 
 
The wide (over 12m) carriageway of the A1000 between the North Circular Road and 
Woodhouse Road provide space for provision of cycle lanes with the flexibility to 
permit parking on one side of the road where needed.  Depending on the location of 
parking demand adjustments to pedestrian refuges might be needed to 
accommodate both cycle provision and parking.  Adjustments at the Granville 
Road/Summers Lane junction to accommodate advance stop line reservoirs would 
be needed. South of Summers Lane provision of segregated or semi-segregated 
facilities (where a continuous or dis-continuous refuge, barrier or difference in level 
separates cyclists from general traffic) might be provided, although this would be 
more expensive. Provision of lanes and associated adjustments to parking, refuges 
and the Granville Road / Summers Lane junction might be provided for £50,000 to 
£100,000. 
 
The provision of improvements at the junction with the North Circular Road is 
referred to above (see East Finchley). 
 
The carriageway between Tally Ho and Woodside Lane is mainly about 12-13m wide 
with a very wide (over 20m section) section between Mayfield Avenue and Finchley 
Park. Through most of the length a general traffic lane and cycle lane could be 
provided with parking permitted on one side of the road only. In the wide centre 
section parking both sides of the road might be retained – although part of this length 
is occupied by a bus stop. 

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of last meeting
	7 LCC Proposals for Finchley and Golders Green
	Appendix A - Finchley and Golders Green Proposals Review


